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NENE EDUCATION TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The trustees present their annual report together with the accounts and auditor's report of the charitable company
for the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees' report,
and a directors’ report and strategic report under company law.

In July 2018 Windmill Primary School and Newton Road School joined the Nene Education Trust (formerly Manor
Learning Trust) creating an extended multi-academy trust which already included a junior academy, St Peter's
Church of England Academy, Stanwick Primary Academy and a secondary academy, Manor Schoot Sports College
in Raunds. In June 2019 the Trust further expanded to include Woodford Church of England School and Raunds
Park Infants School. In August 2021, Redwell Primary School along with the 5 Wells Development Centre became
part of the organisation. The Trusts academies have a combined pupil capacity of 3,124 and had a roll of 2,963 in
the October 2022 Census.

Structurg, governance and management

‘Constitution
The academy trust Is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.

The charitable company operates as the Nene Education Trust comprised of Manor School Sports College, St
Peters CE Academy, Stanwick Primary Academy, Windmill Primary School, Newton Road School, Raunds Park
Infants School, Woodford Church of England Primary School and Redwell Primary School.

The trustees of Nene Education Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company
law. Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved, are included
in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

During the year under review the Trustees held 6 Board Meetings.

Members" liability.
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabllities contracted before they ceased to be a
member.

ln accordance w;th normal commercial practice the Academy Trust has purchased insurance to protect Trustess
from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy Trust business.

Trustees of the Nene Education Trust are appointed by either the Secretary of State for Education, the Members of
the Trust, or, for Foundation Trustees, by the Peterborough Diocese Education Trust. Parent representatives on
Local Advisory Boards are elected by parents of registered pupils at the academies. The CEO is treated as an ex
officio trustee. The Articles of Association require no less than five Trustees. The term of office for any Trustees,
shafl be 4 years from the date of appointment except the CEO who remains a trustee whilst in post.

The terms of office for four Trustees were due for renewal in Summer 2022, and all expressed the wish to remain
with the Trust:- three as Trustees and one as a Member to fill the vacancy left by the resignation of Lance Jones. All
were ratified by the Members Board and all are experienced and active members of the Board, which continues to
provide strong strategic direction and challenge for the Trust.

Evaluation of the Trustees individual and collective skills takes place annually. In the 2021-22 skills audit and
external review of the Trust carried out by Sir David Carter, a need was identified for more local community
representation and professional marketing skills and experience. As one trustee, Georgina Rose resigned in
January 2022, and there being an existing vacancy, the person specification focussed on filling this skills gap. Only
one appointment was made, Jenna Weedon, with effect from 1 September 2022. Jenna not only fills this gap but
she Is also a parent with children in a Trust school and this along with one other Trustee with children at a Trust
school, strengthens this representation on the Trust Board.




NENE EDUCATION TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The replacement of Stephen Atkins as a Diocesan trustee, with Peter French in July 2022 has further strengthened
the education skills and -knowledge on the Trust Board as Peter has extensive education knowledge and experience
in the local area.

The former National Schoo!l Commissioner, Sir David Carter, worked with the Trust Board throughout 2021-22 to
conduct reviews of Trust development, leadership and governance and offer a highly informed and objective eye on
progress against the Trust Strategic Plan.

A Trustee induction handbook was developed in 2022 and has been used to induct the two new trustees. The
handbook s uséd as guidance but tramlng and induction providéd for new Trustees Is tailored to their existing
experience and requirements. Where necessary induction will provide training on chanty and «educational, legal and
financlal matters. All Trustees and .Local Advisory: Board’ members have annual traming in safeguarding, Prevent,
and GDPR.

All Trustees are givef the opportunity to visit Trust schools and meet staff and students. All Trustees have access
to policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgsts, plans and other documents that they need to undertake their
role as Trustess.

The Induction ;and development of ‘Local Advisory Board members is. prlmanly focussed on their role within the
school community — Chairs of LABs and Principals of $chools are involved in this. All induction ténds to be done
informally and ‘is tailored specifi cally to the individual. All LAB menmibers taking “linked™ specialist monltoring roles
such as Attendance and Behaviour linked roles are given annual trainirig and ongoing support by the Trust policy
leads. All Trustees and LAB members have access to tralning on both.education and governance throughout the
year via the National College and specific courses are recommended to them. Trustees have. access. to: the
Confederation of School Trusts update information and the Governance Manager provides them with termly
newsletter updates.

Organisational ctu
The management structure of the Trust consists of the Members Board, Board of Trustees, the Local Advisory
Bodies, specific committees, and the CEO.

The Trustees fulfil a strategic role: setting general policy, approving an annual Trust plan and budget, monitoring
performance against the plan and budget and making decisions about the Trustees of the charitable company, and
capital expenditure, appointment of the CEO and COQ, and LAB Chairs and community members of LABs.

The CEO has taken on the role of Accounting Officer. The Education Standards Committee reviews annual
improvenient plans, monitors academy performance and the Trust school improvément and education strategies.
The Finance Committee recommends budgets t6 the Board of Trustees, The HR Committee has responsibility for
key performarice indicators refating to staff performance, absence, recruitment and retention. The Audit & Risk
Committee ensure that risk management underpins activity across the Trust. The board .delegates a number of
functions to the Local Advisory Boards (LABs) at each acadey. Each LAB. ‘monitors key -areas of performance 'in
safeguarding, looked after children, health & safety, pupil premium, SEND and as well-as overseeing parent and
community liaison, ensures that the curriculum meets the needs of the communily the school serves,

The Trust Central Team consists -6f CEO, ‘Governance Manager and Executive Assistant to the Trust Executive,
‘Chief Operatioris Officer, HR Manager and team, Finance Manager and 1eam, Director of School Improvement A
Director of Professional Learning was.appointed in Noy" 21. These managers control the academies at an Exécutive,
level implementing the policies laid down by the Trustees and reporting back to them.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

5Sa|anes for all key. management are. approved by the Board of Dlrectors pay review arrangements as set out in the
.pay pohcy The pay incréase to key management follows National Agreements in line with Départment of Education
;gutdance For Principals a pupil-number banding calculation is used to inform the pay range salary.

For the CEO, COO, Director of School Improvement and Director of Professional Learning an independent salary
review was undertaken’ with the support of Browne Jacabson in 2021. A comprehensive job evaluation and
-comparison was made across the whole sector and has resulted in Trustees approving a robust and visible
approach to Executive Pay.

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during
the relevant period 3

Full-time equivalent employee number 2.80

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees
0% -
1%-50% 3
51%-99%

100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time -
Total pay bill -
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facilty time -

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of
total paid facility time hours -

ngageme it loyees

The ‘meeting arrangements which the Academy Trust operates allows for information on matters that affect
employees to be cascaded through the Princlpals and Senjor Leadership Teams 1o all employees.

During the year we have further developéd our léadership programmes, our Mental Health and Well-bemg policy to
assist w»th employee engagement/development, We have also increased our investment of time: into our, Mental
Héalth and Wellbeing Lead who works across all schools with staff and studenits. Our Trust Safeguarding Lead
offers-ongoing supervision and guidance to DSL's and leaders. We undertook a trustwide staff survey at the end of
July '22 and have benchmarked this against nationa) staff surveys to enable leaders and local committees to

focus on developing the experience of staff in.the future..

Disabled émployees

Nene Education Trust is committed to equality and diversity of all its employees. Capital investment.is utilised to
adapt the physical environment of all Trust. buildings to ensure accessibility, in terms of. ramps to" access
classrooms and all teaching blocks, disabled toilets are installed, and door widths are adequate to enable
wheelchair access. The policy of the Academy Trust is to support recruitment and retention of students and
employees with disabilities. The Academy Trust does this by providing support throughout all recruitment processes,
by making support resources available and through ongoing training and career development.
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Nene Education Trust owns 100% of the issued ordmary shares of Manor Sports and Leisure Limited, a company
incorporated in England and Wales (registration no. 07877519). Further details regarding the subsidiary company
are given in note 15 to the financial statements.

We have an SLA with Peterborough Diocese who also have minority proportion govemance representation in our
articles.

Objectives and activities

-Objects and.aims

The principal object and activity of the Academy Trust is to provide education for pupils of different abilities between
the ages of 3 and 19.

In actordance with the articles of association the Academy Trust has adopted a *Scheme.of Goverhiance” approved
by the Secretary of State for Education. The Scheme of Government specifies, amongst other things, the basis for
admitting students to the academies, the catchment area from which the students are drawn, and that the
curriculum should comply with the substance of the national curriculum.

The main objectives of the Academy Trust during the year ended 31 August 2022 are summarised below:

The Nene Education Trust has compiled a Strategic Development Plan outlining the goals and targets of the Trust
over the period 2021-2026.

The new plan shares and defines the vision of Trustees, expanding,on the Trust's strategic objectives, definlng key
goals .and performance measures and bullds on individual Academy syccesses already achieved. The vision is to
ensure that our children and young people are challenged contmually t6 ‘complete their education successfully, to
develop self-confidence and self-esteem and to be proactive in determining their career pathway.

Missio ategic Inte
Raising .aspirations and developmg character is at the heart of éveérything we do within our-schools to enable each
young person to achieve highly :and be successfuliin life, contribufing back to the. world we live in. Throughout their
educational journey in the Nene Education Trust, we aim to develop all our leamers within a positive environmerit
for leaming, along with opportunities to develop their spiritual and moral compass so that they grow with integrity.

Through a set of shared principles, we will develop a multiacademy trust of highly effective and sustainable
schools. As a group of schools working in collaboration as one, we will improve and maintain high educational
standards in order to advance education for the public benefit.

Our Strategic Intent will be achieved by delivering the Trust Strategic Plan 2021/26 through the 6 key areas:

Educational Excellence
Schoo! improvement
Developmental Organisation
Infrastructure

Our Wellness

Collective Responsibility

Our shared principles are the DNA running through all we do in creating the culture of our successful multi-academy
trust.

* People first

* Working together

* Outward facing and ambitious
« Autonomy

+ Celebrating our achievement
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

‘Equal Opportuinities Policy

The Trustees’ récognise that equal opportunities should be an mtegral part of good. practice in the workplace. Nene
Education Trust aims to establish equal opportunity in all ‘areas of its activities including creating a working
environment in which the contribution and need of all people are fully valued. To this end, the Trust has an
Equalities Statement, updated annually and an Equality Plan which scopes out areas for action in the following year.

- . - - -

The trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit issued by the
Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties.

The Trustees ensure that the Academy's activities, as described above, are undertaken in line with the charitable
sbjects and aims of the: Trust The Academy Trust follows .tha:s¢hool ;admissions, cntena and. polrc:es sof North
Norlhamptonshlre ‘Council 10 ‘énsure that the: basis for admlsslonsllsﬂtransparem and as fair as posslble to all
poténtial pupils applying 10 the academy-and'is. comparable 1o other local staté-funded schools and academies.

Strategic report

Achlevemants and performance

We:are. oonf ident that our locus ‘on school |mprovement forward thmkmg leadershlp. hrgh quallty teaching and: a'
relevant and mspmng curriculum will in fact take care, of the oulcomes regardless of thé requirements” ‘of these! The.
|oumey that our_young people go on throughout their.time"in " cur. schools will |ead;to improved outcomes = both
‘socially.and academically. Fllpplng this ‘mindseét is crucial 'and it's an approach that we are very proud of and cannot
divert from.

At the heart of our school improvement strategy is a commitment to facilitate partnership working between all Trust
schools, encouraging each to become self-evaluating and outward !looking.

1. The goal is for every teacher in every classroom to be as good as they can be in what they teach (the curriculum)
and how they teach (pedagogy).

2. For this to happen, we need to mobilise for every teacher the best evidence from research.

3. There is no improvement for pupils without improvement in teaching, and no improvement in teaching without the
best professional development for teachers.

4. Strong structures can facilitate better professional development and thus better teaching and improvement for
pupils.

S¢hools are only as good as the people who work in them We endeavour to create the conditions and relationships
in’ every sthool for leaders and ‘teachersto” flourish :and pupils to; succeed. All schools should be learnmg'
orgamsatrons where professlonahleammg and comlnuous |mprovernent s the:norm. This réqliires a: supportrve ,
professional _ulture; -clarity in the expectations of what ‘great looks like; éffective’ support :and: mentoring; - ~and
sustained leadershlp comm\tmenl ‘While a range of factors contribute to ‘sustained school lmprovement. none’are
more lmportam or fundamental.than the quality ‘of professional development for teachers. School leaders, through
ensurmg that relationships within their semng are excellent play a pivotal role in creating this culture.

Our goal is for. every plipil in.our organisation to be’ taughl by an:expert teacher, with'strong pedagogical cantent
knowledge and: underslandmg of how children learn. This requires schools to be effective learning orgamsatlons for
e people who work.in them - nurturing, valuing, and rewarding’ ‘ongoirng development of knowledge and pedagogy
‘through regular ‘constructive feedback, professional discussion’of prachce observatuon of‘othérs, and opportunlty to
engage with research evidence.
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The Néné Education Trust School Improvement Team, under the guidance and direction of the Director of Schoof
Improvemenl, has overall responsibility. for ensuring eaeh school in the Trust provides the best possible education
for aII children in its care and for supporting and challenging Principals in relation to their rofe-and respons;bllitues To
achieve this, we ensure that we know our schools well, including individual strengths and priontses for development.
In response to this, the school improvement team provides support and challenge for individual teams proportionate
to our assessment of need.

There have been a wide range of successes across our group of schools during this year. Some of these successes
are briefly summarised below:

« The impact of the Trust Lead roles; :appointed at” the beginning of 2021/22° academic year, has, been
impressive. This includes the Trust Lead for SEND, the Trust Lead for Safeguarding, lhe Teust Lead for
Mental Health and 'Wellbeing and the Director of Professnonal Leammg The capacity ‘of the School
Improvement Team, led by the Director of School improvement, has added and continues to add great
value to our schools.

* The in-house Local Offer, led by our Trust SEND Lead, was a great-success and very- gratefully received. In
order to support all of our pupils with SEND, the Trust board agreed to provide -additional financial
resources to énsure we could provide the expertise and provision needed to work towards bridging the gap
between what was being made available as part of the Local Offer and what we felt our pupils need and
deserve. Additional funding was be made available until August 2022, while the Local Authority were not
providing a ‘high needs offer’ and external professionals had excessive backlogs and limited capacity to
assess or review pupils.

« A continuing success over the past year is undoubtedly the extent to which our community of schools have
continued to grow closer. Whilst remaining unique and individualised, our well-renowned education strategy
- focused on our exceptional Work. Worid. Wellness. curriculum approach - has supported school leaders
to focus on _high-class curriculum, teaching and learning in their schools; taking -ownérship and
responsibility for their students whilst_at the same time reoogmsmg that support and challenge is there
when required.

Raunds:Park Infant:School

Looking back...

School Improvement Priority] 1. Improve the teaching of writing so that it is consistent across the

areas at beginning 2021/22 schoo! and leads to good progress for all children

academic year 2. Embed the planned cumiculum, ensuring intent is clear in all subjects
and that this is reflected in classroom practice

3. Ensure all staff understand the mastery approach in maths, and deliver]
it effectively across the school

External support/reviews Andy Lakatos Review May 2022 - focus maths and early reading

» Lisa Watson (external Headteacher) to support with development
of phonics

* Hatton Academies Trust Leadership Link

* PiXL Associate

* Pen Green

End of Year outcomes summary = Foundation GLD in-line with-National
| attainment

= Y1 Phonics in-line with National

= Y2 outcomes in-line with National
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Locking forward...

l

{Schiool  Improvement  Priority
areas at beginning ‘2022/23
academic year

. To develop the maths mastery approach across the school for :all
pupils.

.. To improve outcomes for SEND pupils.

. To ensure consistency of approach to the teaching and learning o'#
Phonics and improve outcomes

"E)_(t.er,q‘glf support / Teviews
planned

Andy Lakatos to revisit Term 3

Resume support work with Lisa Watson
PiXL Associate

Maths Hub

[Redwe

I Primary Séhool~ -

Lisa Watson

i)

Léoking back...

{Schiodl Improvement Priori

-caderic year

areas at beginning 2021/_2%

1. For children not on track, to make more than expected progress by;
* Refining the curriculum
* Fogussing on progress
2. To increase.effectiveniess of teaching and leaming by;
* Providing appropriate challenge and support
*s Providing ‘a quality climate for leaming
3. To empower our children to be well rounded leamers by;
* Improving our wellness offer
‘Developing links within the school community:

Extemal support/reviews

Andy Lakatos — Early Reading (Phonics) and EYFS x 2
Maths Hub

PiXL Associate

Pen Green

End of Year outcomes summary
- attainment

1 Foundation GLD slightly above National
1. Y1 Phonics significantly below National
1 Y2 outcomes slightly above National

| Y6 outcomes significantly below National

Looking forward... )
School  Improvement Priority] 1. To improve the attainment of phonics in Year1,
areas at beginning 2022/23] 2. To improve the attainment and progress of pupils in writing
academic year 3. To improve leamning in the EYFS setting to ensure all children havel
i access to an engagirig and purposeful environment
External ‘reéviews/suppoit + Andy Lakatos to revisit Term 1
planped, * RWI Development Days
* PiXL Associate
» Maths Hub
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Looklng back...

: Schoo!  Improvement Priorit
fareds: at beginning 2021/22
s¢ademic year

;. To enhance the school’'s speech and language offer, as pup1|s :often

. To ensure subject leads and schoo! staff to review and enhance the

. To enhance the curriculum offer with a particular focus on the Wérd

arrive |n school with speech and communication skills that “arel,
sxgnlﬁcantly below the national average baseline, to ensure maximur)
progress

To enhance the curriculum offer for the pupils in Key Stage @ne,
building on the strong start in Foundation to promote ‘greater
independence and maximise progress of pupils

role of feedback and assessment across the curriculum areas to.
maximise progress of pupils

aspect of our.curriculum, ensuring our children are given'a breadth off
opportunity and experiences and these are explicit to the children and|
that they then can relate them to the school and British values

External support/reviews

* Andy Lakatos x 2 visits — Réading, SEND, EYFS, Maths,:wider|
curriculum

* Reading Hub

» PiXL Associate

* Maths Hub

* Pen Green

End of Year outcomes summary
- attainment

1 Foundation GLD slightly above National
1 Y1 Phonics slightly above National
1 Y2 outcomes significantly below National

1 Y6 outcomes significantly below National

{Looking forward...
Séhool  Improvement  Priority] 1. To improve outcomes for SEND pupils and vulnerable students
areas at beginning 2022/23} 2. To improve the effectiveness of Subject Leadership
dcademic year 3. To improve outcomes in Mathematics )
4. To raise outcomes to ensure we narrow the gap on the National
Average
External  reviews/ ~ support] » Andy Lakatos to revisit Term 2
planned * PiXL Associate
» Maths Hub

-10-
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SuaRwiok RAmary Aeademy. - - - <L . L o ]
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U.béking back: .-

School’ Improvement Priority}1: Continuous Provision; ‘
areas at beginning 2021/22 o . . ‘
academic year * To identify key elements of continuous provision to thread through
T EYFS and KS1.
» To map out how continuous provision will progress from EYFS to|
Year 2. '
+ To implement a successful plan for continuous provision across
KS1 (EYFS and Year 1 2021/2022).
2. Leadership:

» Key leaders across the school have a secure understanding of
their rotes and their intent.
! * Subject leaders have a secure knowledge of their intent and
implementation, as well as how to monitor this. '

‘» Subject leaders have a secure understanding of the quality and
content of their subject taught across the school.

* School Leaders have a clear overview of what is being taugh
across the school and are able to discuss a high-leve! overview of}
this.

3. Curriculum:

= To have clear sequences in each topic taught across all lessons.

* Clear links have been formed between subjects in each year.gréup,
considering prior knowledge. '

» For pupils to understand the relevance of different topics in their|
lives. o

» To have clear threads of diversity throughout the curriculum.

Maths Hub -

PiXL Associate

Safeguarding Audit

Pen Green _

End of Year outcomes summary|t Foundation GLD significanly above National

- attainment

External support / reviews

1 Y1 Phonics significantly above National

1 Y2 outcomes slightly above National

1 Y6 outcomes significantly below National

Looking forward...

School, Improvement ‘Priority| 1. To improve the teaching of mathematics, with specific focus on §&pp6’i’f§
areas at beginning 2022/23 and challenge. ;
academic year 2. To improve outcomes for Reading at the end of Key Stage Two.

3. To further develop subject leaders to enhance the opportunities)
provided for pupils across the wider curriculum to iappropriately]
challenge and support pupils with SEND.

E),(tém’a'l support / reviews * Andy Lakatos to visit September 2022

planned * Maths Hub

» PiXL Associate -

-11-
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Est,iﬁéte,r’é CE Junlor Academy’
‘ .

Locking back...

School Improvement  Priority
areas at beginning 2021/22
lacademic year

. Improve teaching and leaming, ensuring challenge for all .childréen
including vulnerable and SEND pupils. ,
Embed a mastery approach the teaching and leaming in maths ‘to
improve outcomes for MPA pupils. ’ su

Ensure our curriculum offer supports all children to be courdgeou
advocates living in a diverse world.

Ensure all subject leaders take responsibility for the progress and
outcomes in their subject area.

External support/reviews

¢ Maths Hub

* Andy Lakatos November 2021 — maths focus
* Diocese support, focused on SIAMs

* PiXL Associate

‘[End of Year outcomes summary]
- attainment

1 Y4 times tables outcomes impressive
| Y6 combined outcome below national.. Individual subjects in line with

national, especially maths

Looking forward...
School Improvement Priority] 1. Improve the attainment and progress of mid-prior attainers in maths.
areas at beginning 2022/23| 2. Improve the attainment and progress of SEND pupils in reading.
academic year 3. Build in consciously muliti-cuitural elements to the curriculum and wi,degJ
aspects to promote equality and diversity across the school,
4; Develop ‘@ coaching model to support middle leadership with
moriltoring and evaluation.
External support / reviews] * Andy Lakatos to visit Term 3/4
planned * Diocese support
» Maths Hub support
* PIXL Associate
[Windmill.Primary:School
Looking back...
ISchool  Improvement  Priority] 1. To increase the impact of leadership on the standards of teaching,
areas at beginning 2021/22] learning, assessment across the school: . ,
academic year 2. Cumiculum design (intent) and implementation leads to ‘improved
outcomes for all leamers and raised standards of attainment. .
3. To ensure the effective inclusion of children with additional needs lead
and secure their engagement in learning.
4. To promote positive mental health and well-being across the whole
school community.
5. To strengthen EYFS provision and outcomes for all learnefs,
particularly boys.
External support/reviews * Maths Hub
* English Hub
* Andy Lakatos May 2022 - Reading and SEND
* PiXL Associate
* Interim Action Board
*_Safeguarding Audit

End of Year outcomes summary
- attainment

= Foundation GLD in-line with National

1 Y1 Phonics significantly below National
1 Y2 outcomes below National

1 Y6 outcomes above National

-12 -
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rWindmi__ll,‘ﬁHIhar.yj School. i )
Looking forward....
School Improvement Priority] 1. The teaching and Learning through the school to be good or better
areas at beginning 2022/23] 2. Implement new curriculum across the school
academic year 3. Improve the standard of writing across the school
4. Improve standards in maths across the school
5. To provide enrichment opportunities for all across the curriculum,
External support [/ reviews ¢ Andy Lakatos to visit later in the year
planned * Maths Hub support

Reading Hub support
RWI Development Days
* PiXL Associate

Woodford GE Priniary Schodl & Nursery

Looking back...

School Improvement Priority|
areas at beginning 2021/22
academic year

. To develop consistency in the teaching of maths and ensure approach

. To develop consistency in the use of the teaching and learning whee!.

is aligned to the mastery approach.

To raise expectations from staff, children and parents to ensure there s,
a cuilture of success and high attainment across the school.

External support/reviews

Angela Griffiths — external HT

Andy Lakatos March 2022 - reading and science focus
Diocese support, focused on SIAMs

Hatton Academies Trust Leadership Link

PiXL Associate

-Safeguarding.Audit — Trevor Kendrick

End of Year outcomes summary
| attainment

{= Y1 Phonics in-line with National

1 Foundation GLD slightly above National

= Y2 outcomes in-line with National (maths below)

1 Y6 outcomes above National

academic year

Looking forward...
School Improvement Priority} 1. To have a coherent and well sequenced curriculum
areas at beginning 2022/23] 2. To develop the Maths mastery approach across the school for all

. To improve outcomes:for SEND and vulnherable children

children

Developing Character. — Our Wellness./ Collective Responsibility

External reviews,

planned

support /

* Andy Lakatos to visit Term %
.+ Diocese support

* Maths Hub support

*» PiXL Associate
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Manor.School}

Looking back. ..

School  Improvement
areas at beginning 2021/22
academic year

Priority|

. Develop an integrated CPD portal and a culture of coaching and action

research amongst teachers and other staff to ensure that we identify,
refine and apply the best teacher practice of our students.

To develop all staff confidence with supporting students with SEND
Improve the pace and rigour quality assurance to ensure|
improvements are sustained in identified areas of concern.

ELT have greater clarity and impact at a whole school level on school
strategic measures.

External support/reviews

» Julie Bloor — weekly coaching to SLT, supported with evolution of]
SDP and SEF, designed leadership programme, WWW Review &
supported in development of maths at Manor.

¢ Mark Feldman — QA in several departments — history and soclal1
sciences, PE & science

» Susan Byles — English Review

* MfL Review

» Following the tragic death of one of our students, Callum
Woodcroft, various mental health and suicide awareness|
agencies.

» Safeguarding Audit — Trevor Kendrick

End of Year outcomes summary;
- attainment

| KS4 Progress 8
=KS4 Attainment 8
1 KS5 Attainment and Progress

Looking forward....

School Improvement Priority,
areas at beginning 2022/23
academic year

1.

Consistency [Positive Environment — Developmental Organisation /
Infrastructure]: Integrate all aspects of our teaching and learning
strategy with our professional learning process to ensure high quality
application of our centralised pedagogies lead to sustained
improvements in practice and student outcomes.

Culture [Raising Aspirations — Educational Excellence / School
Improvement): Need is identified early, and appropriate steps are taken
to meet that need.

Community [Developing Character — Our Wellness / Collective
Responsibility]: Engender a stronger culture of engagement and
participation from families and the wider community by improving their,
knowledge and understandingoif all aspects of school life.

{External
planned

support / reviews

|

* Julie Bloor — 3 x departmental reviews

* Appreciative Enquiry partnership with Wollaston School

» Standardisation and moderation across all key stages with
Wollaston School

* We, Mind & Kelly Matters
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Key Stage 4 and 5 results 2022
A much more normal’ summer examrnatron series returned for the Year 11 and 13 cohorts completmg the:r GCSE, A

this: by sharing advanced lnformatnon This information outlined. some of the content. for students WhICh deﬁnutely
would or would not.appear on the final written papers. In many cases this information was mcredlbly ‘useful in many
cases although students and sub]ect teachers reported that these were not helpful in a small number of subjects.

At both Key Stage 4 and Key Stage 5 Ofqual announced before the release of results that they intended that
outcomes would fall to approximately halfway between national averages pre-pandemic in 2019 and Teacher/Centre
Assessed Grades in 2021. This has broadly happened at Key Stage 5 while the return towards pre-pandemic
averages has not quite happened at Key Stage 4.

Headline figures have been provided in this report, and the Department for Education have published pérformance
tables for the first time since the start of the pandemic. However, these figures must still be treated with caution and
are not directly comparable with any recent year or other settings who may have been affected by the pandemic to
a greater or lesser extent than our school and community.

Key Stage 4 Headlines

» Attainment 8 — 44

Progress 8 - -0.57

Grade 5+ in English and maths — 39%
Grade 4+ in English and maths — 58%
EBacc entry — 31.9%

EBacc APS - 3.75

* o & o o

Overall, the attainment at Key Stage 4 was broadly in line with the final data collection point and what was
expected. In most attainment measures, these headlines were also, in line .with 2019 outcomes. Unfortunately, the
progress measures are not as high as expected. This is partly due to the context of the national rise and then fall in
outcomes in recent years, but also significantly affected by the incréased nurmbér of outliers than ever before at
Manor. This year there were a larger cohort of students who were persistently absent throughout the year or dndn't
engage well in the examination series. Companng progress of those who were in school against those who were in’
school for less than 80% of their Year 11 journey, a start -1.4 difference in progress measures Is significant. A similar
picture can be seen across much of the East Midlands which:overall, achieved one of the lowest attamment
averages in the country. It is important to recognise that while the whole school plcture in terms ‘of progress is lower
than anticipated, improvements were evident in priority areas over the last three years, mcludlng in maths and’
sclences.

Key Stage 5 Headlines
* Overall average grade (as grade)— C+
* Overall average point score — 32.46
* Applied general average grade — Merit+

Key Stage 5 results were very pleasing and in nearly all measures higher than national in a year when.it.was’
anticipated these might fall in line with the country. This. means that the gap that existed between Manor. and
national averages in 2019 is now closing with improvements from the bottom'5% of schools nationally, despite lower
grade boundaries. The avérage grade improving from a D to a C+ is testament to the signmcant investment that has
occurred over-the last five years in the Sixth Form at Manor. Equally, important is the reduction in U grades and a
very positive average grade of B- for students with SEND.

Destinations post-16 continues to be an important measure and in 2022 all students who applied were given a place
at university, with 64% of students attending their first-choice university. Of the students that-applied to university,
33% of these applications were accepted into ‘top third' universities. All students who did not follow a university
pathway went into employment, further education or an apprenticeship.
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Overall summary

While there will always be success stories within the Key Stage 4 and § results, there is still progress to be made,
particularly at Key Stage 4 and moving back towards national and a whole school focus on attendance which wili
contribute significantly to this. These resuits should be seen as a legacy set of results given the significant context
that the school has been through in recent years and are seen as a benchmark for improvement over the next thrée
years with historically demonstrated capacity and experience to improve, as evident by the Sixth Form results in
2022 and the pre-pandemic journey of Key Stage 4.

One final thing to shout about...

The year 6 children came together across all of our NET primary schools to give them experiences through our NET
drivers of Work. World. Wellness. to allow for a greater opportunity for our children to be secondary ready. It was a
fantastic experience for the children to develop their confidence in moving around a secondary school, building
relationships with new people and ‘give them knowledge and skills to help begin thinking -about life beyond their
primary years, and how they can be mentally prepared for the transition to secondary school. This was a positive
and engaging experience that allowed the year 6 pupils to be immersed in the NET ethos, and for us to be confident
as educators that we. were preparing our children to be in the best possible position, with some key fundamental
skills, to approach their secondary education.

Feedback from external reviews and leaders in our trust:

"The Trust was seen to have good school improvement capacity and the leadership of the Director of School
Improvement has been encouraged by the CEO. The leadership model developed to support the new Head of
School at Manor deserves particular praise: it gives expérienced suppoit to both the leaders and to the school itself
thus preventing potential isolation as the only secondary. Within the Trust, the subject development groups were
spoken of as a really good innovation. Building on this to develop even more primary/secondary partnership would
be ideal and another very marketable model. The improved CPD offer was noted as a great development,
contributing to both recruitment and retention of staff.” Martin Post (former Regional Schoo! Commissioner).

What does being part of the Nene Education Trust mean to you?

Everything! It has given me excellent opportunities to learn + progress my career.

Being a part of NET allows me to remain in control of my school, where | can make the right judgements and
developments based on evidence relating to the pupils and community that we work with and allows for our
school to continue to be personalised. The community of leaders that work in close proximity allows for actual
support for each other and a feeling of togethemess and support.

Having access to specialist support when required and being able to support others when required too.

Being part of a trust supports development where expertise can be shared across whole school staff.

Strength in farger dept e.g HR, Finance, support for CIF bids

| love being part of a local cluster of schools and as a head | still have the autonomy to run my school. i value
the support of colleagues and the clarity over the priority areas.

The collaborative nature of being in a Trust means that you never feel alone. There is always someone to
contact if you need to ask a question.

Being within a group of schools with shared aims who can support each other and help each other improve.
Being supported by other principals and schools within the trust has helped me within my principal role. It has
been great to be a collective team , to share ideas and practices to ultimately improve outcomes for children
across the schools. The weekly newsletters are very helpful and keep me on track with actions required. | have

felt very supported by certain individuals (CEQ and my SIP) who | feel } can contact at any time and know they
will help.
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After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the board of
trustees continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concem basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policles.

The Trust are working hard to correct a small deficit of £85k (equivalent to 0.5% of annual income) which is as a
result of the following:

 During the year the trust over invested on capital works in the Trust's estate including where successful CIF
bids had required significant contributions from school reserves to be made alongside funds granted by the
ESFA.

» After 31 August 2022 management were made aware that pay increases proposed by the NJC for non-
teaching staff would be significantly higher than anticipated and budgeted. for. The NJC payscales weré
finalised at the unexpectedty high level and due to the materiality level would need to be backdated to April
22. This adjustment took a small surplus position to an overall deficit position of £85k after making an
adjustment totalling £113k.

The Trust Executive are correcting this position by taking the following proactive and mitigating actions:

employing an experienced CFO,

restructuring a range of teams including HR, Executive team, school leadership teams,
enforcing a temporary capital freeze,

freezing recruitment

reforecasting the budget and outturn position for the year to target further savings
reviewing all high spend areas.

The Trust has a net current asset position and has cash in the bank sufficient to meet current liabilities as they fall
due. The Trust are confident that controls are in place that are sufficient to manage spending, with a view to
returning to a surplus position in a realistic timeframe.

Protécting the success of the academy trust

Some particularly stand-out quotes from the feedback are:

Staft

‘Loved the variety - Silhouette Drama group are fabulous. World of Work was amazing - so interesting. We had
some great Visitors talking about their jobs. The Well Being activities were "magical” - according to one of my girls
and the STEM day was so interesting.”

‘It was a really fab week and it was very enjoyable. The Year 6 children have been talking about their future
aspirations and .it-has left a fire.in their belly to learn more. For me, this was the best outcoms. they have leamt
about the world and future careers and they can see themselves fitting in.”

“Yes! So great to see the kids make connections, build on what they know, go out of their comfort zone and leam
how that relates to what starting secondary will be like.

“And more ... The year 6's were given the opportunity to meet people from outside the school who had amazing
things to tell them and that their future is waiting for them.”

“I think .all year groups could benefit from this kind of week - with lots of outside visitors to give children the
experiences that they would not necessarily get in their own lives.”
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“There are so many things you can do out there - things you don't even think.could be a job.”
“We don't have to know what we want to do for a job and that we might change our minds to something totally
different”

“We leamt to try new things and to be braver. We leamt new skills to help us with-secondary school".
“The entomologist was fascinating and we loved exploring her workshop and seeing all the.different insects. | really
enjoyed talking to Sophie Harker and asking her questions. She was engaging.”

“We learnt about different careers and jobs. We learnt more about science.”

Financial review

Most of the Academy's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)/Department of
Education (DfE) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants
received from the ESFA/DfE during the year ended 31 August 2021 and the associated expenditure are shown as
restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Academy also receives grants for fixed assets from the ESFAJOfE. In.accordance. with the A¢counting -and
Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting Activities by Charities' (SORP), such
grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income In the:fixed asset fund: The restricted
fixed .asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the éxpected uséful life 'of the:assets
concemned. In addition, funds are received from various activities carried out to generate funds, such as any running
costs of the Academy not met by restricted grants. Any surplus is carried forward as an unrestricted fund in the
balance sheet.

DFE income increased from £11,574,047 to £14,910,240; this is due to the full year impact of Redwell Primary
school joining the trust and the new supplementary grant funding. Covid support of £155,426 in the previous year
was £0. Local authority income decreased from £515,555 to £445,568 in year.

Unrestricted income decreased in the year from £136,898 to £124,436 in the current year.
Total expenditure increased from £14,302,099 to £18,503,082.

The trusts contribution to CIF projects in the cument period was £182,890 with CIF grants received being
£1,393,936 (includes £308,884 of unspent capital grants at the year end).

The total unrestricted funds carried forward for the current year are £nil.

The sports and leisure facility at Manor Sports college has recovered well after two years of disruptions as a result
of covid. MSL has also contributed to the community by introducing summer camps available to all NET schools in
the Raunds area.

Catering income has recovered but still posted an overall loss in the year. The Trust has focussed on bringing ‘our
other schools under the Manor catering provision and by the start of September 22 it supplied 7 out of the 8 schools
in NET. This will bring financial benefit in 22/23 but will also ensure the best possible quality of food to all students
which is especially important to our families facing economic hardship.
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:rvais pollé
The Trustees regularly review the level of reserves. This review encompasses the nature of income and
expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. It is the policy of the
Trustees to maintain free reserves at a level which ensures that all management and administrative costs can be
met throughout the year.

The Trustees have previously determined that the approximate leve! of free reserves should be £0.5m in order to
provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion
to deal with contingencies.

During the 2017/18 financial year, the Trustees agreed to a temporary reduction to the level of free reserves from
£0.5m to £0.2m during a period where lagged funding was having an adverse impact on reserves.

The Trustees have committed to regularly review the reserves policy in light of the current financial outtum of the
Trust.

Details of Fixed Asset and Pension Reserves are shown in Note 20.

vestrient policy
The Trust does not hold any investments other than cash at bank and its initial £1 investment in its subsidiary

undertaking, Manor Sports and Lelsure Ltd. Where funds allow, the Trustees agree to transfer money to interest
bearing deposit accounts for a limited period.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Trustees have a duty to identify and review the risks to which the charity is exposed and to ensure appropriate
controls are in place to provide reasonable assurance against fraud and error.

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which thé Academy Trust i$ exposed, in.particular those relating to®
teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Academy Trust, and.its finances. The Trustees:
have implemenited a number of systems to assess risks that the Academy Trust faces, especially in the operational,
areas (e.g. in relation to teaching, health and safety, bullying and Academy trips) and in relation to the control -of-
finance. They have introduced systems, including operational procedures (e.g. vetting of new staff and visitors,
supervision of schoo! grounds) and internal financial controls in order to minimise risk.

Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover.

The Academy Trust has an effective system of internal financial controls and this is explained in more detail in the
Governance Statement.

The Trustees regularly review the risks faced by the Academy Trust and have completed a “Risk Map” to identify the
critical areas of concemn. This has been taken down to school leadership level with relevant feedback and
involvement from Principals. As far as possible the Trustees have put in place management controls to minimise/
mitigate risks.

As a result of an A&R subcommittee review during the current year the Trustees consider the following items are the
principal risks facing the Trust:

1. Financial and budget contro!
2. Estates H&S management with reduced budget situation
3. Cyber security

Fundraising

The Trust's Academies occasionally -engage in fundraising activities, either for .a specific venture such as an
overseas trip or a leisure activity, or to, support a charitable event, éspecially nationally recognised :events such as
Children in Need or Comic Relief. Funds raised through such appeals are purely expended on assotiated .costs in
the case of trips and activities or donated in full to the appropriate charity. )
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting
Energy consumption

Aggregate of energy consumption in the year

Emisslons of CO2 equivalent

Scope 1 - direct emissions

- Gas combustion

- Fuel consumed for owned transport

Scope 2 - indirect emissions

- Electricity purchased

Scope 3 - other indiract emissions

- Fuel consurned for transport not owned by the academy trust

Total gross emissions

Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil

Quantification and reporting methodology

2022 2021
kWh KWh
367,993 ~31'0;0'143
2022 2021
metric tonnes metric tonnes
449.00 381.22
3.60 3.81
452.60 385.03
289.50 231.20
10.70 8.20
752.80 624.43
0.25 0.22

We have followed the 2019 HM Govermnment Environmental Reporting Gui_qélings. We have also used the GHG
Reporting. Protecol ~ Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for

Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2 equivalent per pupil, the

recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

* Ongoing energy monitoring using analytics to reduce overall consumption

+ Installation of LED lightings.

* Further thermal upgrades have continued to includes roof insulation and
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Plans for future periods
The Nene Education Trust has compiled a Strategic Development Plan outlining the goals and targets of the Trust
over the period 2021-2026.

The new plan shares and defines’the vision of-Trustees, expandmg on. the Trust's strategrc objéctives, deﬁntng key
goals "and performance. measures and burlds on lndwrdual Academy successes already dchieved., The vision'is to
ensure that pur children and young, people are challenged. contmually to complete their; educatron successfully, to
develop self-confidence and self-esteem and to be proactive in determining their career pathway

Our Misslon (Strategic Intent):

iRaising aspirations and developing: :character i is at the heart ‘of everything we do Within our ‘schools to. enable each

.young; person.to achreve highly and be sucoessful in’life; contributing back to the world we “live i in. Throughout their”
educational'j joumey in the-Nene Education Trust,’ we aim to.develop all: our, learners within 3 posmve ‘enviroiiment

for learnlng along with opportumtles 1o develop thetr splntual and moral compass 50 that they grow with mtegdty

Through a set of ‘shared’ ‘principles, we will develop a multt—acaderny trust of highly effective’ and sustainable
rschools. As a group of schools worklng in collaboratlon as-one; we will improve and, maintain high educational
-standards in order to advance educatton for.the publtc bénefit.

Our Strategic Intent will be achieved by delivering the Trust Strategic Plan 2021/26 through the 6 key areas:

Educational Excellence
School Improvement
Developmental Organisation
Infrastructure

Our Wellness

Collective Responsibility

Our shared principles are the DNA running through all we do in creating the culture of our successful multi-academy
trust.

People first

Working together

Outward facing and ambitious
Autonomy

Celebrating our achievement

‘The Trust has completed ;the centralrsatton*of Fnance Human Resources, Estates.and ICT thls year The aim
:continues;to facus upon achrevmg the, highest. qualrty servicethat delivers consistently high outcomes in"all these
tareas As there were no external fundlng streams avallable (such as TCAF ) the Central costs of 1mp|ementmg these
changes have had to be met from GAG income and reserves.

Central operatrons and systems development

* 'The central team has continued to grow capacity dunng ‘the year with further HR, professional staff belng
employed to support the COO with ‘the:Succéssful réstructures during the year. and TUPE of.catering staff .
This has also allowed more robust management of employee relations cases and’ "a significant increasé in
other support to the schools in other areas such as:absence management

s This in turn has allowed the CEO to focus on the Trust's wider strategy and engagement in the local area.

« The Access platform started to operate in Sept 21 and is now in use across the Trust.

+ The Arbor MIS platform went live on September 1st 2021 with Manor School transferring to the platform in
April 2022.The Visibility of. mformation for.each schoo! has been vital for the school improvement team to
understand and chaltenge the performar\ce of each school.
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The Parago estates management -platform was Introduced during the year under review — this Is proving fo be a
useful tool in managing maintenance tickets in all schools as well as providing a register for the management of all
assets and contracts.

Long-term Growth

The aim over the next fivé years is to contifiue to:grow at a sustainable pace, ndentlfymg schools that offer a-cultural
fit, but that can also add value to the network. Longer-term, the aim is to create two.or three: .geographical hubs
across the towns within North Northamptonshire, growing an optimum sizé of approximately 6,000 pupils. The Trust
now also has a development ceritre offering Independént.education-based fraining to teaching professionals across’
North Northamptonshire. It is also a strategic and delivery partner of the Northamptonshire Teaching School Hub
and Is currently delivering NPQ training and ECF training to cohorts of teachers from-across the region.

Auditor

In so far as the trustees are aware:

- there Is no relevant:audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and

- the trustees have. taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The trustees' report, lncorporatlng a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as the
company directors, on \S'c?’- and signed on its behalf by:

A Laughton
Chair of Trustees
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Scope of responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Nene Education Trust has an effective
and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive. Officér, as accounting
officer, ‘for ensunng financial controls conform with the requirements of both proprlety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the fundmg agreement
between Nene Education Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The accounting officer is also responsible
for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in intemal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 6 times during the year. Attendance
during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

A Laughton (Chair of Trustees)

M Busby

C Hill (Chief Executive Officer)

M Spinks-Wilson

N Bonser-Ward

N Wilson

R Hargrave (Resigned 31 August 2022)

S Atkins (Diocesan corporate director) (Resigned 18 July 2022)
Dr R Whittaker (Diocesan corporate director)
G Rose (Resigned 31 January 2022)

K Duncan-Banerjee

E Nuttall

P French (Appointed 20 July 2022)

J Weedon (Appointed 1 September 2022)

A= LOOROEDIND
DONITT OO

Georgina Rose resigned in January 2022 and a recruitment exercise was carried out in Summer 2022 to recruit a
replacement for that position. Jenna Weedon was appointed to reflect the skills audit review requirement for
someong with both local community knowledge and professional marketing skills' and experience. Jenna also fills
the requirement of parental representation on the Board. Her appointment commenced on 1 September 2022.

The first term of office for 4 trustees came to an end in Summer 2022, but all expressed the wish to be reappointed:
3 as trustees: Anthony Laughton, Nina Wilson, Nathanael Bonser-Ward. All were reappointed by the Members.
Russell Hargrave changed role from trustee to member. Stephen Atkins was replaced as Diocesan Director by Peter
French.

An extemal review of Governance was camried out by Sir David Carter in May 2022 and the findings were
incorporated into the Trust strategic priorities and addressed by the Board as part of the Trust risk mapping. One of
the priority areas was the review of local governance that was carried out in Summer 2022 which ensured the focus
‘of Local Advisory Boards , to be named Local Committees from September 2022, was on developing feedback
loops from school and community level into the Trust Board and a more ambassadorial rather than monitoring role.
This was set out in the updated Scheme of Delegation for 2022-23.
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The review of local govemance also identified risks and weaknesses in the existing delegated responsibilities to
local governing bodies (Local Advisory Boards) for health and safety and safeéguarding. For 2022-23 'a new Trust
Safeguarding Trustee role has been created .and they will chair a Safeguarding Committee of the Trust Board which
will provide a more rigorous ¢hallenge to safeguardmg in the Trust, This will complement the Trust Safeguarding
Lead role at executive level that was created in September 2021. Health and Safety will be managed at executive
level by a Health and Safety Working group that will report to the Trust Audit and Risk Committee.

The Trust's emphasis on the mental health and wellbeing of its staff and students will be monitored at local
governing body leve! by local committee members from September 2022.

The Education Standards Committee will continue to focus in 2022-23 on the impact of the Trust's curriculum and
schoo! improvement focus on the outcomes for students.

Conflicts of interest

Nene Education Trust maintains a Register of Interests which is updated annually by &l fevels of governance -and
staff. The registers for governance are published on the Trust website. Declarations of interest are always sought at
the start of -every Trust Board and Committee meeting, mcludmg Local Committee Meetings. If there were any:
interest declared the individual would absent themselves from any discussions or voting:

Govemance reviews

An external review of Governance was carried out by Sir David Carter in May 2022 and the findings were
incorporated into the Trust strategic priorities and addressed by the Board as part of the Trust risk mapping. One of,
the priority areas was the review of local governance that was carried out in Sufnmer 2022 which'ensured the focus
of Local Advisory Boards, to be named Local Committees from September 2022, was on developing feedback loops
from school and community level into the Trust Board and a more ambassadorial rather than monitoring role. This
was set out in the updated Scheme of Delegation for 2022-23.

The review of local govemance also identified risks and weaknesses in the existing delegated responsibilities to
local goveming bodies (Local Advisory Boards) for health and safety and safeguarding. For 2022-23 a new Trust
Safeguarding Trustee role has been created -and they will chair a Safeguarding Committee of the Trust Board which
will provide a more rigorous chaflenge to safeguarding in the Trust, This will complement the Trust Safeguarding
Lead role at executive level that was created in September 2021. Health and Safety will be -managed at executive
level by a Health and Safety Working group that will report to the Trust Audit and Risk Committee.

In July 2022 the Trust were selected by the ESFA for a.govermance and compliance review against the academy
handbook. This review was very successful as the trust were found to be “well on their way to full compliance with
the academy handbook”.

Plans for 2022-23

In:2021-22 the Trust Board undertook an internal self-review based upon The CST's Assurance framework. External
challenge to this mtemal review was given by Sir David Carter to ensure that the Trust Board had an outward facmg
sector specific companson In particular this review had a significant mﬂuence of the work. achieved on the changes
to the local governance structures implemented In September 2022.

The review reinforced that the direction of travel in 21-22 should continue in 22-23 with a focus upon:

1. The education sub-committee to development a focus on scrutiny of standards as student outcomes
become reliable again after the years of uncertainty caused by covid.
2. Embed the new local committee approach during 22-23 with stakéholder feedback driving the vehicle of
work undertaken in the following areas:
a. The experience of children in each of the schools
b. The experience of staff who work in the schools
c. The experience of parents, carers and families who choose to send their children to your schools
d. The role of the local committee as an ambassador in their community for the trust.
3. Introduction of a new Safeguarding Committee of the Trust Board.

~24-



NENE EDUCATION TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Finance Commiittee

The finance & resources committee is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. The Committee is responsible
for advising the Board on matters relating to the Trust’s finance arrangements, and aid the Board to ensure sound
management of the Trust's finances and resources, including proper planning, monitofing and probity. The Finance
& Resources Committee is responsible to the Trust Board. The Committee’s. Terms of Reference are agreed and
adopted by the Board and can only be amended with the approval of the Board.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:
Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

A Laughton (Chair of Trustees)

C Hill (Chief Executive Officer)

N Bonser-Ward

R Hargrave (Resigned 31 August 2022)

Dr R Whittaker (Diocesan corporate director)
K Duncan-Banerjee

S b ABBWN
S b H b HN

Audit committee

The audit committee is 2 sub-committee of the main board of trustees. The main purposes are to ensure a
comprehensive audit programme is undertaken to review the Risk Map making recommendations and ensuring
there is a robust system of intemal controls in place. The Audit Committee makes recommendations to the board of
directors as set out in the Terms of Reference which is reviewed annually.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible
M Busby 4 4
C Hill {Chief Executive Officer) 4 4
M Spinks-Wilson 4 4
N Bonser-Ward 3 4
G Rose (Resigned 31 January 2022) 1 2

Reviow of value for money

As accounting officer, the Head has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the use
of public resaurces. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the édiicational and wider
societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. )

As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in the use
of public resources. The accounting officer undérstands that value for money refers to the educational and wider.
socletal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including
the use of bénchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the -Academy Trust has delivered
improved value for money during the year by:

1. Student Attainment

Our headline figures earlier in this report. We continue to be immensely proud of all the work and achievements of
our students, especially after such a difficult and disrupted year. Our teachers have worked tirelessly to ensure
students are ali able to progress, and we look forward to seeing what they will achieve in the future.
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2. Ensuring the operation of the Trust demonstrates good value for money and efficient and effective use of
resources.

High value contracts are assessed against the marketplace on a regular basis to’énsure ‘that long'term contracts,
anything over three years in duration, remain oompetmve For purchases above £10, 000 but below the tender limit,
of £25,000, 3 quotes are required.

The Trust has undertaken thorough reviews of its contracts and their suppliers. These continue to fead fo savings
and cost efficiencies in areas throughout the Trust

The Trust now produces monthly KPI's on staff costs per setting and this is reviewed by the senior executive on a
monthly basis alongside the’ inférmation they féceive on contact ratios. .
This information also helps to review the effectiveness of leadership against the cost by setting.

Marketing

A marketing company was appointed in 20-21 to work “with the Trust'on following areas
» Communicate the activities of the schools to. currént and prospective parents
+ Showcase to the wider.community the benefits of being part of NET
* As this focus has now been embedded within the organisation, the contract has ceased on 31.12.22

Review of Catering Provision in all Schools

* ‘The Manor Catering provision has extended its reach during 2021-22 and by the end of the year. under
freview covered 7 (Previdus year 4) schools in the Trust Staff from 3 external suppliers were TUPED to the
Trust.

* The quallty of food served has improved markedly and in 22-23 take up of school meals across the trust
has risen by over 20%:

* This will also save the Trust paying external suppliers for this service.

+ The Trust expects the service to break even during the year against a cost of xx in the previous year.

Central Office
* The trust leased a new central office towards the end of the year, merging 3 different facilities as a resuit.
The move has created efficiencies of working , with all colleagues being in one place and it also houses the
training facility of 5Wells which joined the Trust at the start of the academic year.
e This allowed the trust to save at least one head count and further efficiencies will result as reviews are
undertaken.

Central services
The Trust successfully moved to an internal HR information service and Payrall provision in September 2021.
This removed the need for an extemnal bureau provision , which ensured

» a better service to staff and

¢ better information for line managers

* better controls over payroll payments

The Trust now has a good control of pension payments and can help colleagues understand their pension options in
a more timely manner.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage:risk o a reasonable level rathér than to eliminate all risk of
‘failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absélute assurance

of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based:on an ‘on-going'process designed to identify and prloritrsel
the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the liketihood of those risks.
‘being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them éfficiently, éffectively and-economically.
The system of mtemal control has been’in place In.Neérie Education Trust for the period 1 September 2021 to 31

Augusl 2022 and up to the dateé of approval of the annual report and accounts.
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Capacity to handle risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating,
finangcial and compliance controls that have been implemented fo mitigate those risks. The bioard of trustees is of
the view that there is a formal ongoing process for idenlifying, evaluating and managing the academy trust's
;slgnlﬁcant risks that has been in placé for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of
‘approval of the annual report'and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustess.

The risk and control framework

The academy trust's system of intemal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountabllity. In particular, it includes:

< comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;

« regular reviews by the finance & resources committee of reports which indicate financial performance against
the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

« setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

« clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

« identification and management of risks.

The trustees have identified a range of internal audit functions that align to the risks identified during 2021-22 and
have received internal audit feedback on the following areas from a range of professional organisations.

Safeguarding

GDPR

School Improvement judgements

Trust Review of leadership and governance
Financial and Probity — Executive Pay
Payroll Process Audit

SCR Process Audit

IT and Cyber Security Reviews and Audits
Health and Safety Audits

This demonstrates that trustees are considering the view of risk being a wider remit than just finances.

The Trust board considered the options around internal .audit reports and decided that a bought-in internal audit
service from a firm, other organisation or individual with professional indemnity insurance was the appropriate action
and after tender appointed Maclntyre Hudson to undertake this work.

The impact of the intemnal audit work undertaken in 21-22 saw significant improvements in controls and accuracy of
the balance sheét and implementation of in-house payroll processes.

For the last two years a wide range of other internal audit functions over and above financial control have been
undertaken by other external bodies in regards to GDPR, Safeguarding, Subject reviews and health and safety.

An annual internal audit report encompassing all of the various strands is presented each year to A&R committee.

The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint
Maclintyre Hudson as the internal auditor. The role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a
range of checks on the Academy's financial systems. On atermly basis the Audit‘Committee reports to the board of
Trustees on the operation of the system of control and on the discharge of the board .of Trustees’ financial
responsibilities.
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Review of effectiveness _
As accounting officer the Head has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of intemal control.
During the year in question the review has been informed by:

« the work noted above;

* the work of the Audit Committes;

= the work of the extemal auditor;

« the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development and

maintenance of the intemal contro! framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the audit committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

1

A Laughtoh Hill
Chalr of Trustees Chief Executlve Officer
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As accounting officer of Nene Education Trust, | have. considered my responsibility to notify the acadgmy trust board
‘of trustees and the Education and Skilis Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the’ ‘academy trust, under the funding agreément:in
place betwsen the academy trust and the Seoretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had
due fegard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

I confirm that | and the academy trust's board of trusiees are able to identify any matenal iregular or improper use
of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
academytrust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

1 confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and
ESFA.

PN -_— C -+t

C Hill
Accounting Officer

.......................
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The trustees (who are also the directors of Nene Education Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for preparing the trustees' report and the accounts in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the trustees
must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, Including its income and
expenditure, for that period.

In preparing these accounts, the trustees are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any materlal departures
disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

» prepare the accounts on the going concemn basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company.and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes Intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by-order of the members of the board of trustees on ‘50"Luuand signed on its behalf by:
/ .ﬂ

s, /) i . —

| %

A Laughton
Chair of Trustees
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Opinion

We have audited the accounts of Nene Education Trust for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the
statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and notes to the accounts, including
significant accounting policies. The financial repomng framework that has been applied in“their’ préparation is
-applicable law and United Kingdom Acoountmg “Standards, includirig Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The
‘Financial Reportlng Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" (Unlted ‘Kingdom- Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022:issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the accounts:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2021 to 2022.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the accounts’ section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the .accounts in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in d@¢cordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw your attention to note 1.2 'Going concern' which indicates that the Trust is in an overall deficit for free
reserves as at 31 August 2022. This indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the accounts and our
auditor's report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the -other information contained within the annual report.
Our opinion on the accounts doés not cover the other information ‘and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion théreon. ‘Our réspaonsibility is. to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
accounts or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to detemrmine whether
this gives rise to a material misstatement in the accounts themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year for
which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- the trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.
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e

. Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the Ilght of the knowledge: and understanding of thie.academy trust and its enwronment obtained in the ‘course of
the audit, we have not identified mateérial misstatements in the trustees' report,. mc}udmg the incorporated stralegic
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Compames Act 2006 requires-

us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not recelved all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the statement of trustees’ responsibilities, the trustees are responsible for the preparation
of the accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true: and fair view, and for such Internal control as the

trust's ablhty to continte as a gomg concem dlsclosmg as apphcable matters relaled to going concem and using
the gomg concem basis of accounting unless the trustees euther intend to llqundate the charitable” coimpany, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objeclives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whethér the accounts as a'whole are free from.material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's’ report that mcludes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is'a high lével of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in"accordance with ISAs (UK)
‘will ;always . detect ‘a, material mlsstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or eror and- are
considered material if, Induvadually orin the aggregate they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts.

[Extent to which the audit was consldered capable of deteeting Irregularllues Including fraud

lrregulanttes includmg fratid,“aré instance’s of non-compliance with'laws- and regulations. We. design procedures In
‘line with ‘our, responsibilities, ;outlined above :and on the-Financial Repomng Councif's:website, to detect material
misstatements in respect of wregulantles. mcludlng fraud.

‘We :obtain and update our understanding -of the: enmy, its activities, its.control - envnronment and ||ke|y .future:
tdevelopments; lncludlng in reiatnon to the legal and regutatory framework apphcab!e and how the enttty is complying’
-with that framework. Baséd on this undérstanding, we Identify and assess the risks of materlal misstatement of the;
financial ‘statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and ‘perform audit procedures’ responsrve to those nsks.
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate ‘to;provide a-basis- for our: opmvon Thi§ includes
consideration of the risk of acts by the entity that were contrary to apphcab!e Iaws and regulatuons”lncludlng fraud.
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In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, we designed
procedures which included:

. Enqunry of senior Ieadership, Govemors/Trustées and those! charged with governance around actual and

potential litigation and claims as well ‘as actual, suspected and alleged, fraud;,

Reviewing minutes of meetlngs of those charged with govemance;

Assessing the extent'of. compllance with the’laws and regulations- consudered to havea direct’ materlal

effect on the financial statements or the operations of the company lhrough enqmry and inspection;:

« Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing 1o supporting documentation to;assess: compliance
with apphcable laws and-régulations including ‘compliance with the Academies Accounts Dlrectnon 2020 to
2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency; .

¢ Performing audit work over the recognmon of grant income and the allocation of expenditure to funds;

* Performing audit work over the risk of management bias and overide of controls, including testing of
journal entries and. other adjustments for appropriateness. evaluatmg the rationale of significant
transactions outsiderthe normal:course of business! and ‘reviewing accouriting estimates for indicators ;of
potential bias.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there Is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material rmsstatement in the financial statements, or non—compliance with .regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulallon is removed ‘from the @vents and transactions reflected
in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resultmg from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ‘override of intemal control,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the accounts is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report Is made solely.to the charitable company's members, as'a body, i in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part’'16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we mlght state to the charitable company's
members those.matters we are: requlred to:state to them in.an’ auditor's: ;report:and for no. other: purpose. To'the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume: responsibmly to anyone. other than ‘the charltable
company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work for'this report, of for the opinions we
have formed.

3\7\2,\% %JX\ S,QN\\Q,B

Richard Monkhouse (Senior Statutory Auditor) \
for and on behalf of Azets Audit Services A8\ \2022

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor Thorpe House
93 Headlands
Kettering
Northamptonshire
United Kingdom
NN15 6BL
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In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 25 August 2021 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by Nene Education Trust during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the
purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Nene Education Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Nene Education Trust and ESFA those matters
we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than Nene Education Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for
the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Nene Education Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer Is responsible, under the requirements of Nene Education Trust's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State. for Education dated 31 October 2015 and the Academy Trust: Handbook, extant from 1
September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern.them.

Our responsibilities for this ergagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s sthical guidance,
and .are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of
the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received
during the périod 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament
or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative concfusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on & test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
» Assessment and testing of the internal audit work and reliance placed upon this work for the review of internal
control procedures

« Further testing of the intemal control procedures has been carried out in the followings areas:
+ Sample test of delegated authority procedures
* Enquiry and review of transactions with connected parties
* Review of govermance procedures including inspection of trustee and relevant board minutes
» Sample test of procurement procedures

« Communication with the accounting officer
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Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income recgived during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has. not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govemn them.

Mok AdA Seewes

Reporting Accountant
Azets Audit Services
Thorpe House

93 Headlands

Kettering
Northamptonshire
NN15 6BL

United Kingdom

Dated:; \S\\Z\ZQ 22 .
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Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Total
funds General Fixed asset 2022 2021
Notes £ £ £ £ £
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 26,960 = 1,578,629 1,605,589 188,370
Donations - transfer from local
authority on conversion - S - - 2,426,850
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4 534,435 15,355,710 - 15,890,145 12,595,082
Other trading activities 5 426,466 - = 426,466 196,898
Investments 6 109 - : 109 81
Total 987,970 15,355,710 1,578,629 17,922,309 15,407,281
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
-~ Educationatl operations 9 1,317,636 16,425,773 786,397 18,529,806 14,302,099
Total 7 1,317,636 16,425,773 786,397 18,529,806 14,302,099
Net Income/(expenditure) (329,666) (1,070,063) 792,232 (607,497) 1,105,182
Transfers between funds 20 - (222,210) 222,210 . -
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined
benefit pension schemes 22 < 7,124,000 - 7,124,000 (1,237,000)
Net movement in funds (329,666) 5,831,727 1,014,442 6,516,503 (131,818)
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 329,666 (6,582,867) 24,530,673 18,277,472 18,409,290
Total funds carmried forward - (751,140) 25,545,115 24,793,975

18,277,472
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NENE EDUCATION TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Comparative year information
Year ended 31 August 2021

Notes
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3
Donations - transfer from local authority on
conversion
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations
Other trading activitles
investments 6

(2 Y

Total

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:

- Educational operations 9

Total 7

Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds 20

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension
schemes 22

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

329,666

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
funds General Fixed asset 2021
£ £ £ £
23,584 - 164,786 188,370
400,850 (474,000) 2,500,000 2,426,850
314,261 12,280,821 - 12,595,082
196,898 - - 196,898
81 - - 81
935,674 11,806,821 2,664,786 15,407,281
665,084 12,893,148 743,867 14,302,099
665,084 12,893,148 743,867 14,302,099
270,590 (1,086,327) 1,920,919 1,105,182
11,081 (130,981) 119,900 -

= (1,237,000) < (1,237,000)

281,671 (2,454,308) 2,040,819 (131,818)
47,995 (4,128,559) 22,489,854 18,409,290

(6,582,867) 24,530,673

18,277,472
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NENE EDUCATION TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022

Notes
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13

Current assets
Stocks 14

Debtors 16
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one

year 17
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year 18

Net assets before defined benefit pension
scheme liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 22
Total net assets

Funds of the academy trust:

Restricted funds 20
- Fixed asset funds

- Restricted income funds

- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds 20

Total funds

signed on theif.behalf by:

ALatightoh?”
Chair of Trustees

2022
£ £
25,230,356
4,950
1,523,594
310,484
1,839,028
(1,586,118)
252,910
25,483 266
(23,291)
25,450,975
(666,000)
24,793,975
25,545,115
(85,140),
(666,000)
24,793,975
24,793,975

2021
£ £

24,530,673
4,950

1,059,432
430,454

1,494,836

(1,125,679)

369,157

24,899,830
(32,358)

24,867,472
(6.590,000)

18,277,472

24,530,673
RGEE
1(6,590.000)
17,947,806

329,666

18,277,472

Company registration number 07816548




NENE EDUCATION TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used in operating activities 23
Cash funds transferred on conversion

Cash flows from Investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Capiltal funding received from sponsors and others
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long term loan

Repayment of other loan

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2022
£ £
(203,561)
(203,561)
109
1,578,629
(1,486,080)
92,658
(9,067)
(9.067)
(119,970)
430,454

310484

2021

81
159,953
4,833

(182,824)
4,000

595

(502,470)
400,850

(101,620)

(13,957)

595

(114,982)
545436

430,454
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NENE EDUCATION TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1

11

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies

Nene Education Trust is a charitable company. The address of its principal place of business is given on
page 1 and the nature of its operations are set out in the trustees' report.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basls of preparation

The accounts of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reponmg by Charities: Statement of Recommended
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in ‘accordance with the Financial Reporting * Standard
applicablé in the UK and ‘Républic of Irelahd (FRS 102) (Charites SORP (FRS 102)), the Academues
Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 20086. "

The presentation currency of the financial statements is pound sterling.

Going concern

The tristees assess.whether the use: of: gomg congern’is:appropriate, ie whether there (aré” any ‘mateérial
uncertainties related to events or, condmons that may "Cast.significant .dolibt .on"the ability of the charitable
company to continie as a going concern. The trusteés make this assessment in respect of a period of at  least
one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts.

,As of 31 August 2022 the Academy Trust has net current assets 6f £252,910, ifcuired an operating ‘deficit in

the year of £607 ;497 (inciuding depreciation and LGPS pension costs), has a cash balance of £310, 484 and
a deficit carry forward on free reserves of £85,140.

The Trustees have prepared the financial statements on the going corcern basis. The Trust currently has a

net current asset posrtron and cash on hand at bank to meet current liabilities as they fall due, which supports

the ongoing adoption of the Going Concern basis of accounts preparatlon However, Surrént global volatility

places the finances of the Trust under sngmﬁcant pressure as costs escalate’ beyond lofg-term averages and

expectatrons Unfunded ‘and backdated pay rises have caused the overall position of the Trust to move from a

surplus'to a deficit’ position and the Trust'is contunumg to focus on prepanng balanced budgets and realising”
cost savings to bring the Trust's reserves back to a surplus position. The mitigating actions mentioned. in. 'the

going concern section of the’ Trustees Report reflect that management are focused onithis and demonstrate;
that the leadership’of the Trust has;a clear plan to'move the trust back'to a surplus position over the comrng-
year and in-line with its reserves pollcy in the Ionger—term

Should there be any deterioration in the Academy Trust's financial position in the future, the Trustees would
discuss with the ESFA the requirement for advance funding to secure the Academy Trust's position.

]Beanng the above in mind, the management and Trustees are confident that the Academy has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable fulure. For this reason, the finaricial

statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Where the Trust is.no- longer a going concern, adjustments may be required to 1he carrying value of assets,

,provcsmn would als"be required for the future liabllities arising as a consequence of the Trust.ceasing
?‘business and assets and liabilities currently. classrﬁed as non-current would be reclassified as current.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements contain information about Nene Education Trust as an individual charitable company
and do not contain consolidated financial inférmation as a parent of a group. In the trustees' opinion the
results of the subsidiary are not malérial to an understanding of the academy trust's financial statements as in
accordance with S405(2) of Companies Act 2006.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

14

Accounting policies (Continued)

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entilement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specrf c purposes but not expended during’the” period is shown’in ithe, relevant funds-on the»
‘balance shéet. Whére income is received in‘advance of meeting any perfonnance related conditions there is:
‘not’ unconditional - entitlement Jo-the income-and. its recognmon lis deferred ‘and included in credrtors as;
-deferred income unul the performance—related conditions ‘are met.” Where ‘entitiement occurs before lncome rs
‘received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital granils are recognised in full when there is an uncondltronal entitlement to tHe grant. Unspént amounts
.of .capital -.grants are reﬁected in-the balance ‘sheét in the restncted “fixed asset fund. Capital grants:are
recognised when theré i$ entitiement -and_ are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they. are
‘expended.

onsorship income
Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-refated
conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, bemg the expected proceeds from sale less the expected.
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at recerpt !t is recognised’in stock. and lncome from
other trading activities’, Upon sale, the value of the stock:is ‘charged against ‘income: from other tradmg,
aclivities'.and the proceeds are récognised as ‘income from other trad:ng activities'. Where it is impractical to’
fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they - are not recognrsed in the accourts .until they
are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities'.

-Donated fixed assets;

.Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unléss it is impractical to measure this rehably, in whlch case
‘the cost of the- item to thé ‘donor is. Used. The gain'is recognlsed .as income from donatrons and a
correspondlng amourit is mcluded in the appropriate fixed. asset’ category ‘and depreciated over the useful
«economic life in accordance w:th the academy trust' s accounting policies.

"Where asséts and liabilities are received on the transfer of an-éxisting academy into the academy trust, the
transferred net assets are measured at fair,value 'and recognised in the balance sheet at the point \M'ren the
risks and réwards of ownership pass to the_academy trust. Income. equal to the nét assets transferred is
recogmsed within donations and capital grant income.

-41-



NENE EDUCATION TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1.5

1.6

Accounting policles {Continued)

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive,obligation to transfer economic beneﬁt toa
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of
the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expendlture is classified by activity. The costs of each actlvlty are, made up of the total of direct ‘costs and
shared costs, including support costs unvolved in undertaklng éach actuvrty Direct costs attributable to a single
activity-are_allocated directly to ‘that . dctivity. Shared costs which.contribute to more .than oneactivity and
stipport costs" ‘which:are not attributable to'a: single activity are apportioned between those activitiés on a
basis ‘consistent with the use of resources: Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spént, and
depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

_Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable ac tivities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tanglble fixed assets have been acqmred with the aid of specific grants, elther from the govemment or
from the: private. sector, they ‘are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where:there are. speclt’ ¢ conditions attached to the funding that require the continued
use of the asset, the related grants ‘are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities and carried forward In the balance sheet. Depreccatlon on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed assel fund in the statement -of financial-activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

The academy trust has a legal agreement for.the use of thé land and buildings under a church ‘supplemental
agreement, These are rollmg agreements with a minimum two years written notice period for tennmatlon no
such notice has been given at the date of signing, the accounts

In accordance:with the accounting treatment set‘out by the Academies Accounts Direction; the land and
buildings assomated with Redwell Primary’ Schoo! have been included as an asset in the ﬁnancna| statements,
based on.a full market value at the date of convers:on

:Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than'freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
ithe cost of each assét on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Land and buildings 2% of cost

Property improvements 10% of cost
Computer equipment 25% of cost
Fixtures, fittings & equipment 10% of cost

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on those assets is not charged until
they are brought into use.
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1.8

1.9

1.10

1.1

1.12

Accounting policies (Continued)

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances Iindicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value. of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impainments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the statement of financial activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of &conoiviic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the séttiement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities. are recognised.at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay
to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must
provide.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments

The academy trust's shareholding in the wholly owned subsidiary, Manor Sports and Leisure Limited, is
included in the balance sheet at cost less any impairment. There is no readily available market value for this
subsidiary and the cost of a valuation exceeds the benefit derived.

Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Einancial assets
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised
cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financia| liabilities
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Stock
Stock is valued at the fower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling price less further costs to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving
stock.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule-6 of the Finance Act 2010,
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes Accordmgly. the
academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income ‘or capital gains received within
categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporatuon Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 .of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are appfied exclusively to charitable
purposes.
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1.14

Accounting policles {Continued)

Pensions benefits

Retirement” benéfits: to _employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
(TPS ) and the Local. Government Pens«on Scheme (LGPS'"). These are defined :benefit-schemes._ and the
‘assets are held separately from ‘thosé of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
.employees' working'livés with the: academy trust.in such a way that the pension cost is a substantialy level
percentage of ‘current and future: penslonable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Govemment
Actuary onthe basis of quadrenmat valuations. usmg a projected unit method. The TPS is‘an unfunded multi-
employer scheme with’no Underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is tréated
;as a.defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contribitions are recognised in the period
to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy
trust in. separate trustee administereéd funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and labilities
are measured on an actuarial basis \using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high—quahty ‘corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities:
The. actuarial’ valuations are obtained at least trienpially and are updated-at each balance sheet date The
amounts charged ;to net income” or expendtture are the current sefvice costs’and the ‘costs; of scheme
introductions, benefit changes -settlements ‘ang: curtallments ‘They are: mcluded as part of ;staff costs as
incurred. Net interest on the nét défined benefit tuability/asset is also. recogmsed in the statement of financial
activitiés and comprises-the interest cost on the defined beneﬁt obligation and intefest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by mulhplymg the fair value of the ‘scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate .
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the.
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

=Restricted general funds comprisé all other restricted funds received with restnctuons imposed by the funder/

‘donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Departiment for Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

,Acoountmg estimates and judgéments are confinually evaluated and.are based on historical experience and

other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Ciitical accounting esfimates and assuriptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assurmptions’ concerning ‘the future. The resultmg accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a: material adjustment 1o the, canymg amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

-44-



NENE EDUCATION TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (Continued)

The présent valué of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used In
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptlons
which are disclosed in note 22, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability, Furthermorg, a roll
forward approach which progects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 'March 2019
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2022. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on ‘the carrylng
amount of the pension liability.

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2022 2021

£ £ £ £

Capital grants - 1,578,629 1,578,629 169,953
Other donations 26,960 - 26,960 28,417
26,960 1,578,629 1,605,589 188,370

4 Funding for the academy trust's charitable activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
DFE/ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG) - 13,543,003 13,543,003 10,242,157

Other DfE/ESFA grants:
- UIFSM - 162,684 162,684 158,697
- Pupil premium - 676,214 676,214 500,530
- PE and sport premium ~ 128,520 128,520 106,680
- Rates - 26,536 26,536 53,825
- Teachers pension grant - 31,744 31,744 360,555
- Teachers pay grant - 11,202 11,202 126,603
- Others - 256,480 256,480 25,000

- 14,836,383 14,836,383 11,574,047

Other government grants

Local authority grants - 519,327 519,327 515,555
COVID-19 additional funding

DFE/ESFA

Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - - . 155,426
Other incoming resources 534,435 - 534,435 350,054

Total funding 534,435 15,355,710 15,890,145 12,595,082
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4

Funding for the academy trust's charitable actlvitles

(Continued)

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from govemment support schemes in
response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above.

Other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Catering income
Other income

Investment income

Short term deposits

Expenditure

Academy’s educational operations

- Direct costs
- Allocated support costs

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Fees payable to auditor for:
- Audit

- Other services

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2022 2021

£ £ £ £

39,397 - 39,397 27,224

270,071 - 270,071 96,886

116,998 = 116,998 72,738

426,466 -~ 426,466 196,898

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2022 2021

£ £ £ £

109 - 109 81

Non-pay expenditure Total Total

Staff costs Premises Other 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £
11,214,711 - 1,207,884 12,422,595 9,513,860
3,101,315 1,672,916 1,332,980 6,107,211 4,788,239
14,316,026 1,672,916 2,540,864 18,529,806 14,302,099
2022 2021

£ £

15,300 13,000

6,200 8,790

60,045 71,129

786,397 639,848

= (1,848)

118,000 78,000

Net interest on defined benefit pension liability
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8 Central services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Back office functions

» Accounting services
Human resources
Payroll
ICT services
Facilities advisory
Catering management
Insurance services
Staff cover
Health and safety audits
Administration support

Teaching and learning

* Principal - leadership and manageiment
Performing-arts support across all schools
Specialist PE teaching
Specialist music support
Safeguarding support
SENCO support

The academy trust charges for these services as a percentage of funding. For the year ended 31 August

2022, the charges were based on 6% (2021 -"7%) of school funding.

The amounts charged during the year were as follows: 2022 2021
£ £
Redwell Primary School 151,859 28,905
Manor School Sports College 323,312 354,046
St Peters CofE Academy 50,644 49,823
Stanwick Primary School 48,655 57,587
Windmill Primary Schoo! 100,320 122,170
Newton Road School 69,598 84,344
Woodford Church of England Primary School 27,489 30,277
Raunds Park Infants School 35,734 42,651
807,611 769,803
9 Charitable activities
Unrestricted Restrictad Total Total
funds funds 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Direct costs

Educational operations 988,906 11,433,689 12,422,595 9,513,860

Support costs
Educational operations 328,730 5,778,481 6,107,211 4,788,239
1,317,636 17,212,170 18,529,806 14,302,099
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9 Charitable activities (Continued)
2022 2021
£ £

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs 3,101,315 2,381,190
Depreciation and (profit)fioss on disposal 786,397 638,000
Technology costs 266,429 211,903
Premises costs 886,519 846,611
Legal costs 168,975 110,931
Other support costs 873,431 577,814

Govemance costs 24,145 21,790 .

6,107,211 4,788,239

10 Staff
Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were::
2022 2021
£ £
Wages and salaries 9,988,578 7,863,516
Social security costs 782,363 687,728
Pension costs 3,229,244 2,210,200
Staff costs - employees 14,000,185 10,761,444
Agency staff costs 315,841 132,400
Staff restructuring costs . 15,000
14,316,026 10,908,844
Staff development and other staff costs 35,674 -
Total staff expenditure 14,351,700 10,908,844

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Severance payments - 15,000
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10

Staff

Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

2022
Number
Teachers 166
Administration and support 261
Management 12
439

The number of persons employed; expressed as a full time equivalent, was as follows:
2022
Number
Teachers 147
Administration and support 180
Management 12
339

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs

national Insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

£130,001 - £140,000

2022

Number

£60,000 - £70,000 4
£70,001 - £80,000 2
£80,001 - £80,000 1
£90,001 - £400,000 1
£100,001 - £110,000 -
£110,001 - £120,000 1

(Continued)

2021
Number

145
196

2021
Number

127
115

and employer

2021
Number

”.u‘j—n.-s.&

Please note in 2021 one member of staff in the pay range £130,000 - £140,000 includes severance, pay in
lieu of notice and redundancy pay. With nommalised annual pay this would have fallen into the range of

£100,000 - £110,000.

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions
and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to

the academy trust was £1,053,760 (2021: £922,874).
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12

13

Trustees’ remuneration and expenses

One or more of the trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the academy trust. The Head and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services
they provide undertaking the roles of Head and staff members under their contracts of employment, and not in
respect of their services as trustees.

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

C Hill (CEO):
* Remuneration £115,000 - £120,000 (2021: £100,000 - £105,000)
+ Employer's pension contributions £25,000 - £30,000 (2021: £20,000 - £25,000)

During the year, travel and subsistence payments totalling £385 (2021: £257) were reimbursed or paid directly
to 1 trustee (2021: 2 trustees).

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out within the related parties note.

Trustees' and officers’ insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy trust has purchased insurance to protect
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy
trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and the costs of the
insurance forms part of the overall insurance cost for the Academy Trust.

Tangible fixed assets

Land and Property Computer  Fixtures, Total
buildings improvements equipment fittings &
equipment
£ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 September 2021 25,623,128 1,657,268 223,464 479,780 27,983,640
Additions - 1,396,356 38,191 51,533 1,486,080
At 31 August 2022 25,623,128 3,053,624 261,655 531,313 29,469,720
Depreciation
At 1 September 2021 2,787,584 447,607 113,856 103,920 3,452,967
Charge for the year 468,004 241,440 25,732 51,221 786,397
At 31 August 2022 3,255,588 689,047 139,588 155,141 4,239,364
Net book value
At 31 August 2022 22,367,540 2,364,577 122,067 376,172 25,230,356
At 31 August 2021 22,835,544 1,209,661 109,608 375,860 24,530,673
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13  Tangible fixed assets (Continued)
The net book value of land and buildings comprises:
2022 2021
£ £
Freeholds 14,916,336 15,216,202
Long leaseholds (over 50 years) 7,451,204 7,619,342
22,367,540 22,835,544
14 Stocks
2022 2021
£ £
Catering stock 4,950 4,950
15 Fixed asset Investments
Total
Historical cost:
At 31 August 2022 1
At 31 August 2021 1
Holdings of more than 20%
The company holds more than 20% of the share capital of the following companies:
Company Country of registration or Shares held
incorporation
Class %
Subsidiary undertakings
Manor Sports and Leisure England and Wales Ordinary 100
Limited
The aggregate amount of capital and reserves and the results of these undertakings for the last
relevant financial year were as follows:
Capital and Profit/(loss) for the year
reserves
Principal activities £ £
Manor Sports and Leisure Hire of sports and business
27,758

Limited facilities 21,117
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16 Debtors

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by group undertakings
VAT recoverable

Prepayments and accrued income

17  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Government loans

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred Income

18 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Govemment loans

Analysis of loans

Not wholly repayable within five years by instalments
Wholly repayable within five years

Less: included in current liabilities

Amounts included above

Loan maturity

Debt due in one year or less

Due in more than one year but not more than two years
Due in more than two years but not more than five years
Due in more than five years

2022 2021

£ £

1,268 630
54,231 37,580
69,098 78,767
1,398,897 942,455
1523504 1050432

2022 2021

£ £

9,067 9,067
555,924 463,444
211,148 226,448
241,991 234,659

567,988 192,061
1,586,118 1,125,679

2022 2021

£ £

23,291 32,358

2022 2021

£ £

- 658

32,358 40,767
32,358 41,425
(9,067) (9,067)
23,291 32,358
9,067 98,067
9,067 9,067
14,224 22,633

- 658

32,358

41,425
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19

20

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (Continued)

Included within other creditors are Salix loans totalling £32,358 (2021: £41,425). The Salix loans are interest
free and repayable in six-monthly instalments over eight years.

Deferred income

2022 2021

£ £
Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year 197,522 92,915
Deferred income at 1 September 2021 92,915 184,913
Released from previous years (92,915) (184,913)
Resources deferrad in the year 197,522 92,915
Deferred income at 31 August 2022 197,522 92,915

At the balance sheet date, the academy trust was holding funds received in advance for rates relief, free
school meals and school trips for the 2021/22 academic year.

Funds

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2021 income Expenditure transfers 2022
£ £ £ £ £

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 7,133 13,543,003 (13,413,066) (222,210) (85,140)
UIFSM - 162,684 (162,684) - -
Pupil premium = 676,214 (676,214) - -
Other DfE/ESFA grants - 454,482 (454,482) - -
Other government grants = 519,327 (519,327) - -
Pension reserve (6,580,000) - (1,200,000) 7,124,000 (666,000)

(6,582,867) 15,355,710 (16,425,773) 6,901,790 (751,140)

Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited on conversion 24,530,673 (786,397) 1,486,080 25,230,356
DfE group capital grants - 1,578,629 - (1,263,870) 314,759

24,530,673 1,578,629 (786,397) 222,210 25,545,116

Total restricted funds 17,947,806 16,934,339 (17,212,170) 7,124,000 24,793,975
Unrestricted funds
General funds 329,666 987,970 (1,317,636) - -

Total funds 18,277,472 17,922,309  (18,529,806) 7,124,000 24,793,975
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Funds (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted General Funds represent unspent General Annual Grant (GAG), which must be used for the normal
recurring costs of the academy trust together with other restricted general funds.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to any restriction
on the amount of GAG that it could cairy forward at 31 August 2022.

During the period, a transfer of £222,210 was made from restricted general funds to restricted fixed asset
funds In respect of capital expenditure in the period funded from restricted general income.

The above funds all represent funding received less specific costs relating to each activity during the year.
The activities are generally government funded and are all closely associated with the educational objectives
of the academy trust.

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds represent resources which have been applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funder together with cash resources still to be expended.

Restricted Pension Reserve Funds represent the academy trust's share of the assets and liabilities of the
Local Government Pension Scheme.
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20

Funds

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Other government grants
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion

DfE group capital grants
Private sector capital
sponsorship

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

18,409,290

15,407,281

(Continued)

Balance at Galns, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure transfers 2021

£ £ £ £ £

138,441 10,242,157  (10,242,484) (130,981) 7.133

- 158,697 (158,697) - -

L 500,530 (500,530) - -

= 672,663 (672,663) = -

= 670,981 (670,981) = =

- 35,793 (35,793) - -
(4,267,000) (474,000) (612,000)  (1,237,000) (6,590,000)
(4,128,559) 11,806,821 (12,893,148) (1,367,981) (6,582,867)
22,489,854 2,500,000 (639,848) 180,667 24,530,673
- 159,953 (104,019) (55,934) -

- 4,833 - (4.833) -
22,489,854 2,664,786 (743,867) 119,900 24,530,673
18,361,295 14,471,607 (13,637,015) (1,248,081) 17,947,806

47,995 935,674 (665,084) 11,081 329,666

(14,302,099) (1,237,000) 18,277,472

<
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Total funds analysis by academy
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were allocated as follows:

Redwell Primary School

Manor School Sports Coliege

St Peters CofE Academy

Stanwick Primary School

Windmill Primary School

Newton Road School

Woodford Church of England Primary Schoaol
Raunds Park Infants School

Central services

Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve

Resftricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Total funds

(Continued)

2022 2021

£ £

302,179 366,224
(70,235) (65,220)

(37,385) 14,758
(9,494) (23,401)

(112,440) 7,305
(144,282) (83,181)

134,012 106,741

24,996 169,634
(172,491) (156,061)

(85,140) 336,799

25,545,115 24,530,673
(666,000)  (6,590,000)

24,793,975 18,277,472
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Funds (Continued)

The following schools showed a carfied forward deficit at 31 August 2022:
+ Manor School Sports College
« Newton Road School
» St Peters CofE Academy
* Windmill Primary School
* Central services

The reason for the schools being in deficit are:

In the current year two schools (Manor and Newton Road) remain in a cumulative deficit and two schools (ST
Peters and Windmill) have fallen into this category.

Manor School Sports Coilege - In year 21-22 was a balanced year although we were not able to recover any
deficit this year.

Newton Road School - The deficit increased mainly due to contributions to capital projects-and s_ta_fvt"i:hg‘_,cp_.st_s_
which were over budget. This school ‘continues to be affected negatively by ‘covid absenteeism aniongst staff
which resulted in significant supply costs.

St Peters CofE Academy - This deficit was caused by an overspend on professional services.

Stanwick Primary School - The school improved their cumulative deficit position this year and are nearing the
break even point due to a 22/23 restructure.

Windmill Primary School - The deficit was créated by. the expense surrounding the leadership team changes
and therefore some duplication of costs. A long term absence cost also impacted on the leadership team.

Central services - The costs for the Trust included one off relocation costs which led to the deficit against
budget.

Mitigating Actions to address and recover the reserves position across the trust:
= Re-budgeting to align reality to changed starting position

Restructure of leadership in some schools and HR function

Freeze on capital spend

Freeze on recruitment — unless approved by CEO

More rigorous and timely management accounts/reporting

Deficit recovery plan built into re-budget

Move to GAG pooling budget mode!

Exec team restructure to increase focus on finance through new CFO

2nd SRMA 'proactive’ review was undertaken in Nov'22

Many of these actions were already being undertaken prior to the end of year accounts process due to the
pressures caused by the unfunded pay increases. Therefore the Trust Board are confident that the trust will
retumn to a surplus position overall by the end of 22-23.
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21

Funds

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Redwell Primary School
Manor School Sports
College

St Petars CofE Academy
Stanwick Primary School
Windmill Primary School
Newton Road School
Woodford Church of
England Primary School
Raunds Park Infants
School

Central services

Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are

represented by:
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Pension scheme liability

Total net assets

{Continued)
Teaching and Other costs

educational Other support Educational excluding Total Total
support staff staff costs suppiies depreciation 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
1,928,993 213,750 144,346 395,398 2,682,487 228,078
4,061,242 298,975 367.820 847,694 5575731 5,690,801
659,580 74,892 55,288 87,862 877,622 929,445
581,765 85,033 36,839 116,082 819,719 843,546
1,359,272 190,643 91,138 182,550 1,823,603 1,952,021
993,945 145,204 53,395 149,927 1,342,471 1,434,328
384,650 45,686 32,875 62,491 525,702 490,230
557,284 41,418 27,676 79,716 706,094 584,887
723,654 2,005,714 38,519 622,093 3,389,980 1,508,825
11,250,385 3,101,315 847,896 2,543,813 17,743,409 13,662,251
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £
- - 25,230,356 25,230,356
- 1,524,269 314,759 1,839,028

- (1,586,118) - (1,586,118)

- (23,291) - (23,291)

- (666,000) - (666,000)
- (751,140) 25,545,115 24,793,975
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22

Analysis of net assets betOeen funds (Continued)
Unrestricted Restricted fundsO Total
Funds MNeneral Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are
represented byl
Tangible fixed assets - s 24,530,673 24,530,673
Current assets 1,487,703 7,133 - 1,494,836
Current liabilities (1,125,679) < = (1,125,679)
Non-current liabllities (32,358) - - (32,358)
Pension scheme liability = (6,590,000) = (6.590,000)
Total net assets 320,666  (6,582,867) 24,530,673 18,277,472

Pension and similar obligations

The academy. trust's.employees belong to two principal pension schemss: the Teachers' Perision Scheme
England and Wales -(TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government. Pension ‘Schéihe,
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Hymans Robertson LLP. Both are muiti-employer defined
benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £234,919 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 (2021: £167,079) and
are included within creditors.

Teachers® Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit schéne, govemed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts. All
teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

DCaluation of the TeachersCPension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5§ March 2019.
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The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

= employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration charge)

* ‘total scheme liabilities {pensions currently in payment and the estimated ‘cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (eshmated future contnbutions
tagether with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million gavlng a notional
past service deficit of £22,000 million

» thé SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2:4% above tHe raté of CPI. The assumed real rate of retum i§ 2.4% in excess of
prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real eamings. growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including eamings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.
The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £1,209,353 (2021: £1,121,328).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded mult-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local DJovernment Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are % for
employers and % for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event
of academy closure, outstanding Local Govemment Pension Scheme liabilittes would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Total contributions made 2022 2021

£ £
Employer's contributions 646,000 436,000
Employees’ contributions 173,000 123,000
Total contributions 819,000 558,000
Principal actuarial assumptions 2022 2021
Rate of increase in salaries 3.6 34
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 3.1 2.9
Discount rate for scheme liabllities 4.3 1.7
Commutation of pensions to lump sums - Pre April 2008 service 50.0 50.0
Commutation of pensions to lump sums - Post April 2008 service 75.0 75.0
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Pension and similar ohligations

{Continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

- Retiring today

- Males

- Females

Retiring in 20 years
- Males

- Females

Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:

Discount rate + 0.1%
Discount rate - 0.1%

Mortality assumption + 1 year
Mortality assumption - 1 year
CPlrate + 0.1%

CPlrate - 0.1%

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme

Equities
Bonds
Property
Other assets

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £{641,000) (2021: £1,404,000).

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total operating charge

2022 2021

Dears Dears

21.7 21.7

241 241

228 21.7

25.8 25.8

2022 2021

£ £

236,000 372,000
(236,000)
411,000
{(411,000)

222,000 , (

(222,000)  {342.000)

2022 2021

Fair value Fair value

£ £

6,638,490 6,332,170

1,539,360 1,890,200

1,346,940 1,134,120

96,210 94,510

9,621,000 9,451,000

2022 2021

£ £

1,728,000 970,000

(162,000) (120,000)
280,000 198,000
1,846,000 1,048,000
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23

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2021

Obligations acquired on conversion
Current service cost

Interest cost

Employee contributions

Actuarial (gain)/loss

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2022

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets

At 1 September 2021

Assets acquired on conversion
Interest income

Actuarial loss/(gain)

Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2022

Reconciliation of net (expenditure)Oincome to net cash floD from operating activities

Notes
Net (expenditure)/income for the reporting period (as per the
statement of financial activities)
Adjusted for:
Net surplus on conversion to academy
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Investment income receivable J
Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable 22
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 22

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
(Loss)/profit on disposal of fixed assets
(Increase) in debtors

Increase in creditors

Net cash used in operating activities

(Continued)
2022 2021
£ £
16,041,000 10,996,000
2 1,240,000
1,728,000 970,000
280,000 198,000
173,000 123,000
(7,927,000) 2,521,000
(8,000) (7,000)
10,287,000 16,041,000
2022 2021
£ £
9,451,000 6,729,000
B 766,000
162,000 120,000
{803,000) 1,284,000
646,000 436,000
173,000 123,000
(8,000) (7.000)
9,621,000 9,451,000
2022 2021
£ £
(607,497) 1,105,182
- (2,426,850)
(1,578,629) (164,786)
(109) (81)
1,082,000 534,000
118,000 78,000
786,397 639,848
- (1,848)
(464,162) (554,254)
460,439 288,319
(203,561) (502,470)
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24  Analysis of changes in net funds

25

26

27

1 September Cash flows 31 August

2021 2022

£ £ £

Cash 430,454 (119,970) 310,484
Loans falling due within one year (9.067) - (9,067)
Loans falling due after more than one year (32,358) 9,067 (23,291)

389,029 (110,903) 278,126

Contingent liabilities

During thé year of the Fundmg Agreemeni, in the event of the ‘sale or disposal by other means, of any assét
for which a government capital grant 'was received thé acaderny trust s required, either to re-invest the
proceeds, or to repay to the Secretary of State for Educatlon the same proportion .of the proceeds of the sale
or dnsposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost miet by the Secretary; ofState.

Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the academy
serving notice, the academy trust shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:
« the value at that time of the academy trust's site and premises and other assets held for the purpose
of the academy trust; and
= the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the
Secretary of State under the Funding Agreement

Long-term commitments
Operating leases

At 31 August 2022 the total of the academy trust’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was:

2022 2021
£ £
Amounts due within one year 108,109 93,553
Amounts due in two and five years 189,383 94,790
297,492 188,343

Capital commitments
2022 2021
£ £
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts 31,072 -

During the year the Trust have been successful in obtaining capital funding ‘from the ESFA. The prqects
covered by this funding have yet to start at the year end. As part of the funding the Trust have committed to
expenditure from free reserves of £31,072,

In addition to this the funding includes a loan repayable to the ESFA of £16,997.
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29

Related party transactions

meg to the natire of the academy trust's operations, and the composition.of the board of trustees being

drawn from local public and private’ sector organisations, fransactions may take place with. orgamsatlons in
which the academy trust has an interest. All transactions: involving such organisations. are canducted at arm's
length.and in accordance with the academy trust's financial regulatnons and normal procurement procedures,

The following related party transactions took place with the Trust's wholly owned subsidiary, Manor Sports &
Leisure Limited, in the period of account:

a) The academy trust recharged staff costs and other expenses totalling £117,968 (2021: £127,317)
to the subsidiary
b) At 31 August 2022 other debtors included £54,231 (2021: £37,580) due from the subsidiary

In entering into these transactions, the academy trust has complied with the requirements of the Academy
Trust Handbook 2021.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contnbule 1o the assets of the company in the event of
it being wound up while he or she'is a member, or within-one- year after he or she ceases to bé.a meimber,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she
ceases to be a member.
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